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Job # 30796 
Chairman Klein: Opened the hearing on SB 2137. All members were present.  
 
Senator Laron, District 3: Testified in support of the bill. I bring this bill to you today because 
there are some folks who have had the idea of starting an entrepreneurial business, a cigar bar 
in our town. A history of the bill: it did go through South Dakota’s legislature, and it was 
passed. Now I’ve been to a few of these cigar bar places throughout the country, where it’s 
kind of an entity where you can purchase these cigars and then I you want you can go into 
another VIP room where if you want you can stay and smoke. Some have ventilation, some 
are like my welding shop back at circle sanitation so it’s a little interesting there. But the 
legislation does speak about having a good ventilation system there. And I’m not sure if that 
was South Dakota language or not. I’m not a cigar connoisseur by any means so the 
legislation from South Dakota talked about a ring size, 40 ring size and such. So somebody 
contacted me to change that to a 30 ring size. There was some discussion about that and then 
there was another individual who said to use the federal language about tobacco being 
wrapped in tobacco weighing three pounds per thousand or more. So I do have that hand out 
so you can see what those look like. (See Attachment #1). So those were the correspondence 
to me and here’s the other two little pieces. (See Attachment #2). And I do have some other 
people folks with me that really do know the ins and outs of the business and I think it’s time ya 
know after all that legislation that you can’t smoke inside a bar. And it is some restricted 
language because 10% of the income has to be from cigars so you can’t, it’s pretty specific on 
doing this.  

 
Chairman Klein: When you spoke about ring size is that like circumference? Or should I wait 
for the experts to answer that.  
 
Senator Larson: I think you probably better wait on that because I’m not sure at all.  
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Chairman Klein: When you spoke to the amount of money that’s generated... Okay so not just 
anybody can open up a cigar bar. You’ve got to have cigars to sell.  
 
Senator Larson: Right so what I was thinking of is that we do have a humidor and a cigar 
selection at one of our golf courses. So I’m thinking okay now they’re going to start smoking 
cigars inside the bar there. But they can’t do that because they have to sell 10% of their, whatever 
comes through that door. 10% of that has to be cigars. And that’s gonna be a lot of cigars. And 
I don’t see with the golf, and the greens fees, and their dinners, and everything that they do 
there, that they will ever make 10% cigar sales.  
 
Chairman Klein: So the idea here being very site specific, because the entrepreneur, that would 
be his business that he has to generate at least 10% have to be from cigar sales or he cannot 
do what you’re proposing.  
 
Senator Larson: That’s correct.  
 
Senator Roers: What would preclude somebody from having a business within a business? So 
let’s say the golf course you just mentioned let’s say they had cocktails within it? 
 
Senator Larson: If anything maybe people could bring their own drinks but the cigar lounge 
would not be able to sell liquor I do not believe.  
 
Job # 30781 
 
Collin Nelson, Executive Tobacco LLC: See Attachment #3 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
Job # 30820 
 
Testimony from Collin Nelson continues.   
 
(3:08)Chairman Klein: So what I’m hearing here is that you want to establish this smoking 
lounge where by upscale tobacco products will be sold, 10% of what you sell will have to be 
tobacco and then you’re gonna step off into this lounge area where people will enjoy the cigar?  
 
Collin: Correct. Or pipe or hookah. But not cigarettes.  
 
Chairman Klein: Okay, so you can’t smoke cigarettes in this lounge? 
 
Collin: No, in the past in smoking lounges that have been around, in North Dakota or other 
states, they don’t allow cigarette smoking in the cigar lounge. Because honestly, cigar smokers 
find cigarette smokers to be just as obnoxious as most people find cigar smokers. 
 
Chairman Klein: But following the argument maybe would be that are we on a slippery slope to 
opening the door to the next sort of smoking lounge that wouldn’t be a cigar lounge but… I don’t 
know. I’m just kind of thinking what I may here as the morning goes on.  
 
Collin: In the original wording that we have proposed to Senator Larson, it did have some 
language I there that established that the tobacco smoked on the premises must be purchased 
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from that premises. And most cigar shops, not all, but most, they don’t specialize in selling 
cigarettes. It’s not profitable for most cigar shops. I do understand that there’s a cigar shop here 
in town that makes most of their profit off of selling cigarettes, but that not always the case.   
 
Chairman Klein: And then the ring size, for the benefit of the committee do you want to tell us 
what that ring size is? 
 
Collin: In my opinion, the ring size shouldn’t be an issue at all, it should be the definition of what 
a cigar actually is. And a cigar is a natural leaf rolled inside another natural leaf with zero 
additives put in it. It’s not ground up, it’s not processed. Its hand rolled with tobacco inside, 
wrapped in a tobacco leaf.  
 
Chairman Klein: As opposed to cigarettes which have some additives? Being provided, hate to 
go there but, cigars are natural?  
 
Collin: Correct.  
 
Senator Burckhard: So let’s assume for this question that recreational marijuana had passed 
in November, would a cigar bar also accommodate the smoking of marijuana? 
 
Collin: Um no. In my understanding that would require a special license. My intentions are to 
open a cigar shop in town if this passes. I have no interest in pursuing a permit for the sale or 
consumption of marijuana on said property.  
 
Chairman Klein: I think the consumption of marijuana in the law is pretty specific as to where 
you can smoke it and I don’t know if you’re ever gonna be able to get it in an organized store.  
 
Senator Kreun: Senator Larson alluded to this as an entrepreneur business being brought 
forward so in that respect, what is the price range of some of these products and what is the 
annual sales in the US and the potential sales in North Dakota to try to offset some of these 
prices. What would offset these costs? 
 
Collin: I can tell you as far as the cost of cigars varies from $2, $3 for a cigar all the way up to 
$1000 a stick. For the most part the average cigar smoker would smoke cigars roughly from the 
$6-$15 range. And ya know, going back to the verbiage of a cigar being a hobby not a habit.  
 
Senator Kreun: In the 10% area what else would you be selling in your establishment to offset 
some of those sales, because if you’re selling average $6-$15 cigars that’s a lot of cigars to open 
up a building and make payments on it.  
 
Collin: Typically, tobacconists sell pipes, hookahs, humidors, all the paraphilia required to keep 
these products fresh, which would be all sorts of humidification equipment, fluid for the 
humidification equipment, lighters, cutters 
 
Chairman Klein: But there’s no alcohol license associated with this? 
 
Collin: No, not at all.   
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Senator Kreun: What about sandwiches, food that other thing? Nonalcoholic beverages? 
 
Collin: Pretty much every cigar store I’ve ever been in has a cooler that sells sodas, which I 
would also more than likely sell on my premises. In the past, for certain members that purchase 
a membership, are allowed to have a locker and bring in their own drinks. What happens from 
this point would depend on how the wording of the law ends up with the wording.  
 
Chairman Klein: Okay, because there will probably be with this bill, there would be a bull’s eye 
on your business to keep certainly people looking in and seeing how you’re operating.  
 
Senator Roers: Senator Burckhard asked would marijuana be sold, premium tobacco, and 
would marijuana fall under that? 
 
Collin: Marijuana is not tobacco. Let me back up here. The cigarette industry uses a process in 
which they grind up the tobacco leaves, and they usually use the least desirable parts of the 
tobacco leaf. They use different strains of tobacco that aren’t typically used in the tobacco or 
pipe industry. They create a paper out of the tobacco, they grind it up and then they pack their 
cigarettes with it. And that’s not premium tobacco. They put all sorts of additives in that so called 
tobacco, that allows it to burn slower or faster or to burn more evenly. Who know what else those 
chemicals do. I’m led to believe that their meant to make nicotine more addictive.   
 
Senator Roers: What is a hookah? 
 
Collin: Its Turkish in origin, or at least Middle eastern in origin. It’s a water pipe, its a group thing, 
it uses sheesh, which is a flavored tobacco product. I don’t know a lot about sheesh products.  
 
Chairman Klein: When we talked about nicotine and addiction issues when it comes to smoking 
cigarettes. But there’s still nicotine in a cigar, is there not?  
 
Collin: Oh, absolutely.  
 
Chairman Klein: I guess I don’t know really know a whole lot of cigar addicts as opposed to 
cigarettes.  
 
Collin: I didn’t come with all kinds of facts in regards to what the FDA has to say about it. We 
could sit and argue numbers and figures and people are still gonna disagree on it.  
 
Chairman Klein: And people are asking questions. I’ve been here twelve years and this is my 
first cigar bar discussion. But its certainly interesting to see what entrepreneurial folks are out 
there trying to create a different sort of business.  
 
(14:58)Shaun Sipma, citizen of Minot: See attachment #4 for testimony in support of the bill.  
 
(20:31)Jerrod McClellan: Testified in support of the bill. I am a licensed tobacco retailer in North 
Dakota, I sell currently as a sole proprietorship, and on behalf of this bill, every single one of my 
customers, and I’m not joking when I say this, has asked, where can I sit down and smoke a 
cigar? And I have to tell them, I don’t know. In your garage or on your back porch maybe? In the 
incident that this bill was passed, it would allow the opportunity for the people that do choose to 



Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee  
SB 2137 
1/15/19 
Page 5  
   

smoke premium tobacco, the opportunity to sit down and enjoy premium tobacco themselves. 
On behalf of the question to what a hookah is, a hookah is a social gathering smoking device. It 
is premium tobacco mixed with flavoring. No additives aside from the flavoring. A little bit of 
glycerin to mix with the water so that you get the effect of the smoke but that is it. Other than 
that, there are no additives that you would find in gas station cigarettes.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Isn’t there a little bit of a difference between your hookah-smoking crowd 
and your cigar smoking crowd? I imagine this group to be a cigar smoking crowd, for instance.  
 
Jerrod: I’m actually more of a cigar smoking crowd myself. But I have many friends who enjoy 
smoking hookah shisha. It’s a social gathering that they can sit down and enjoy after a long hard 
day at work, while they are playing games. And just sit down wherever they are, smoking and 
enjoying. The other benefit of the hookah is there is no waft of cigars or pipe tobacco. And that’s 
the other benefit of that. It leaves a sweet aroma and that’s it.   
 
Chairman Klein: So there’s no smoke? 
 
Jerrod: There isn’t. because the tobacco is watered down to the point where the tobacco is .005 
or less.  
 
Senator Burckhard: Tell us your last name again and how you spell it? 
 
Jerrod: McClellan 
 
(25:18)Neil Charvat, Director of the Tobacco Prevention and Control Program for the 
North Dakota Department of Health: See attachment #5 for testimony in opposition to the bill.  
 
(30:11)Chairman Klein: You spoke somewhat broadly about secondhand smoke, and I’m just 
picking up on what I’ve heard from the other presenters, that other states, who I believe were in 
the no smoking business before us, have changed or narrowly defined what a cigar  lounge 
could be. And obviously they are operating, do you have any research, we all know about the 
over health and death risks. And we all know, I mean my kids all knew about it by the time they 
were in school but, you’re broad brushing this here and I’d like more specifics here if we could 
change the language, because you seem to concern yourself with people vaping and smoking 
in the cigar lounge. If that was more restrictive or but anyway I’m just looking for a narrower sort 
of concern rather than the broad brush approach.  
 
Neil: Regardless of if you can put in definitions, the fact that there is hookah involved, that’s not 
a clean chemical experience. They’re burning using charcoal, they put the shisha and then they 
put the charcoal on top of that and then light it, it’s not like its smokeless burning.  
 
Chairman Klein: But you have to get folks together to do this so it’s not like you’re forcing them 
to be there? 
 
Neil: Correct, but there is second hand smoke relating to cigars as well, and it might be a different 
secondhand smoke than cigarettes but its still secondhand smoke and it still poses a danger. 
There are some other states that allow it but it’s not because someone like me supports it with 
scientific research. It was mainly someone in the industry coming in and changing it.   
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(32:57)Deb Knuth, North Dakota American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network: See 
attachment #6 for testimony in opposition to the bill.  
 
Senator Kreun: In the fourth paragraph, cigars also produce secondhand smoke that is 
dangerous for nonsmokers. Within the cancer research, has there been a study to show the 
difference between cigar and cigarette smoke? 
 
Deb: I do have some factsheets regarding cigar smoke and I will get that to the committee. I 
know that we are against any kind of combustible tobacco because we have found that it is the 
cause of lung cancer and that’s the leading cause of cancer in the United States so that’s why 
we’re so affably against it.  
 
Senator Kreun: The reason I ask is because we are separating the two supposedly, so I would 
be interested in the research that shows what the cigars are compared to the cigarettes.  
 
Chairman Klein: There was a lot of discussion last session with the advent of medical marijuana 
and should that be inhaled or used in a combustible form. And of course there was a lot of 
struggle to craft a law that would allow some folks under the request of the doctors to use 
combustibles. Are they not also inhaling something that would be dangerous to their lungs, or is 
it because they’re using something that’s recommended by their physician to us this? Just 
wondering what your position is on that? 
 
Deb: ACS is opposed to ANY combustible and that includes marijuana.  
 
(39:03)Heather Austin, Tobacco Free North Dakota: see attachment #7 for testimony in 
opposition to the bill.  
 
(41:00)Senator Burckhard: With electronic product use at epidemic levels, talk about that? 
 
Heather: The FDA released a position stating that they believed that there is an epidemic with 
our youth using vaping, Juuling, electronic products. Use rate has skyrocketed year over year 
data is showing an increase of 78% with our young people using these electronic products.  
Without a clear definition of what exactly premium tobacco is, there could be all kind of 
exceptions and doors opened for not only cigars, pipes, hookahs, possibly electronics but again, 
it renormalized things for our youth that we really want to prevent them from doing. That nicotine 
is so addictive especially in young brains. Brains aren’t finished developing until age 25. We 
really want to prevent out kids from developing that lifelong addiction to nicotine and nicotine is 
found in cigars. We don’t want to open the door to eroding our smoke free laws in North Dakota.    
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Not necessarily relating but just information about Tobacco Free North 
Dakota, did they take a stance on the recreational marijuana?  
 
Heather: No, we did not take a stance. Our mission statement is around tobacco only, so we 
were not able to jump in the debate.  
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Chairman Klein: To Deb’s comment, this issue with the study in England, that the 14 year olds 
who are doing weed are already at that age have affected their ability to learn and it carries with 
them until the end.   
 
Heather: Nicotine affects the prefrontal cortex in a similar fashion that’s the decision making part 
of our brain and in young brains its especially harmful because it effects it so much more directly 
than a fully developed brain and so, affecting that developing part can impact learning abilities 
as well and nicotine is a chemical known to do that.  
 
Chairman Klein: We’re never gonna get to the point where we don’t have tobacco anymore. It’s 
just not gonna happen. Everybody is making an effort to understand and acknowledge that there 
are issues that surround tobacco use, and we’ve seen the use of tobacco go down considerably. 
But you’re going to reach a point where you reach the end. We can create a lot of laws and we 
have, but there’s other people who don’t support that or those ideas, so it’s very difficult. But we 
certainly enjoy the tobacco tax as it helps our general fund but nevertheless we see the problems 
that may or may not be associated with it. There’s never been legislation to totally ban it. In 1997, 
we had a bill that would ban tobacco but didn’t pass obviously.  
 
Heather: If you’re asking if Tobacco Free North Dakota would introduce legislation that would 
do that, we wouldn’t at this time. We know that there is a lot of work to still be done in tobacco 
prevention and control policy and we would love to see our rates go all the way down to zero. 
And part of that is protecting the wonderful policy you all have already put in place like our indoor 
smoke free air law, it’s one of the best in the nation. Let’s preserve it and protect it and then we 
can look at other policies that can help get our numbers down even lower.  
 
(46:59)Valerie Schoepf, President, Bismarck Tobacco Free Coalition: see attachment #8 for 
testimony in opposition to the bill.  
 
(50:12)Chairman Klein: There’s gonna be a bill somewhere along the way for that also, we 
understand the concerns you have and the concerns independent business has, and the people 
in between. But sometimes it’s not that easy.  
 
Valerie: I agree, and I understand that and it’s all spinning around for me here today. But at the 
end of the day second hand smoke exposure, which our voters overwhelmingly approved 
protecting workers. You know how people come into the jobs that they always come in to. 
Cleaning up establishments that are lounges or bars, I don’t know those backstories but to say 
it’s always a choice seems short-sighted as well.   
 
Chairman Klein: Well if you recall back in the 90s when we had all these issues, Jerry Klein 
was usually in opposition because he never smoked but the will of individuals, and that’s 
something, I don’t want to take everyone’s individual freedom away but also balance that with 
blowing smoke on your neighbor who doesn’t want it, that was the fine line. But you override the 
business issues and we tried to work it out and I think we’re okay but I’m just throwing that out 
because I think there’s gonna be a little bit of discussion on this one.  
 
(52:19)Kira Lampton, Minot citizen: See attachment #9 for testimony in opposition to the bill.  
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(56:53)Mary Korsmo, Executive Director of the North Dakota State Association of City and 
County Health Officials (SACCHO): see attachment #10 for testimony in opposition to the bill.  
 
Chairman Klein: Once again, I’m looking at the 34% that didn’t vote for it, the 34% are probably 
still smoking somewhere. The 34% now that would only be allowed to enter this shop/bar/room, 
that would have to be of age. I understand we’re trying to keep a smoke free environment and 
good for all North Dakotans. But there are some North Dakota who would get together and hang 
out and support each other in a cigar setting. I know Deb said its addictive as anything but I see 
more of the, I was in the grocery business forever and you see the addiction that goes along 
with that. But as people moved away from tobacco, they always looked for something else to do 
but eventually got totally away from tobacco. But cigars are sometimes the crutch in the middle. 
I’m not speaking for that 34% that didn’t vote for it but there probably, if there’s any way to allow 
them to have some rights as North Dakotans.  
 
Mary: I appreciate that and I respect what you’re saying as well, but we need to support our 
mission which is the only safe way is no way, in public at least.  
 
Chairman Klein: I’d rather they smoked in the cigar lounge than in their homes or garages with 
kids and grandkids. They can go hang out with guys, get them out of the house. And their wife 
would appreciate that to. I just know speaking from experience.  
 
Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing on SB 2137. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to cigar bars. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1 

Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on SB 2137. All members were 
present.  
 
Chairman Klein: As you’ll recall, senator Larson had these amendments prepared (see 
attachment #1). We had some discussion last week, and I’m just throwing this out for 
discussion. There was some question over changing the word from cigar bars to cigar 
lounges because there is no alcohol here and the word bar would suggest drinking. So I 
believe Senator Larson took that out of there. There was a question on page 2 line 11, 
where the word premium, and there was a question over what that word meant? And any 
premium product is removed. And thing cigar thing I think is removed again. And then on 
page 2 line 18, replace number 40 ring size or larger with contains only tobacco binder and 
no additives. And then lastly after line 18 insert cigar lounge means a business dedicated, 
in whole or in part, to the smoking of cigars which generates thirty percent or more of the 
business’s annual gross income from the sale of cigars. I know that Senator Larson has 
been in conversation with the tax department because they were wondering, they don’t 
have any problems they just want to be sure they understand what their role is. Because I 
believe it says somewhere that they are the ones that determine they have 30% of their 
annual sales, and you do have to report your sales through the tax department.  
 
Senator Roers: Wasn’t the original 10%? 
 
Chairman Klein: I thought so. I thought 10% was in here somewhere but I don’t remember 
seeing it.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Yeah I thought so.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: I thought Oley told me 10%.  
 
Senator Burckhard: 10% or more of the sales must be cigar related.  
Chairman Klein: Where did you get that?  
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Senator Burckhard: Some notes I took.  
 
Senator Roers: Yeah, it’s right here on this… is this an amendment? 
 
Chairman Klein: That was an amendment that did not get added.  

 
Senator Piepkorn: Curious, how big is a 40 ring size? 
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Well I think like Swisher Sweets and stuff, don’t they fit that? 
 
Senator Roers: That’s kind what I thought.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: So it’s not going to make any difference delivering this, I’m just curious. 
 
Chairman Klein: I have conflict here cause the folks of Altrea added me a definition of 
tobacco they feel needs to be in there to be uniform and this is not that language.  
 
Senator Roers: From who? 
 
Chairman Klein: The Marlboro lady. Used to be Phillip Morris. Okay committee, we are going 
to adjourn and I am going to further visit with Senator Larson. I hate to sort of prolong this 
sort of agony but we will and I will check with the sponsor of the bill and he’ll have to check 
with those folks because they felt it was legally necessary that that definition be very clear 
as to what tobacco really means or measures.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Just one little remark, it’s not that important. But just the cigar lounge 
versus the cigar bar, even though it’s more fun to say cigar bar. It’s more of a marketing 
change than anything. The cigar bar change to a cigar lounge is more of an image thing.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Well there won’t be alcohol there so.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Well I know but a lot of people refer to a bar as a lounge maybe more in 
the older days. Although it is a little fancier than a bar.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: You can’t smoke in a bar though.  
 
Chairman Klein: Alright well we will adjourn and we’ll see you, uh, later.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to cigar bars. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1  

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on SB 2137.  
 
Chairman Klein: Explains changes to the amendments. See attachment #1 for the proposed 
amendment.  

 
Committee discussed proposed amendments to the bill. The committee determined that they 

still needed clarification on certain points of the amendments and were going to wait to make a 
motion until Senator Larson could explain the changes made to the amendment.  

 
Chairman Klein: closed the committee work session.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to cigar bars.  
 

Minutes:                                                 Att. #1-4 

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on SB 2137. All members were 
present.  
 
Senator Larson, District 3: testified in support of the bill. Walked through the amendments. 
See attachment #1 for additional testimony.  
 
Chairman Klein: passed out a Christmas tree version of the amendments that Senator 
Larson was going through. See attachment #2 for amendments.  
 
(6:51)Vice Chairman Vedaa: the bar part, will that be all cigar smoke or does it have to have 
a second spot? Or is this gonna be considered a bar with cigar? And that’s it? 
 
Senator Larson: What I’ve understood, is that if you want to smoke a cigarette in there you 
end up paying $15 per cigarette to smoke a cigarette in their lounge or bar. So my 
understanding is they will not be selling cigarettes in these places.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: So that bar that will be a cigar bar will be all smoke then? There will 
be no smoke free areas? The entire place will be cigar and bar?  
 
Senator Larson: I don’t know that. As far as I know, they are normally sectioned off.  
 
(11:31)Chairman Klein: The early discussion mentioned premium?  
 
Senator Larson: Yes, that’s mentioned here. (referring to amendment) 
 
(13:45)Chairman Klein: are there questions specific to the amendments? 
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Should there be something in this bill that mandates a warning on 
the outside that says there’s smoking inside?  
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Senator Larson: Of all the places that I’ve been, I haven’t seen any warnings.  
 
Chairman Klein: So you’re approaching this facility that says Oley’s Cigar Lounge, so we 
would know that it’s a cigar lounge so that’s the warning right there? 
 
Senator Larson: Yes, I think so.  
 
Chairman Klein: But you have to generate 30% of your sales selling cigars for you to be 
able to call yourself that.  
 
Senator Larson: Yes, for a cigar bar but for a cigar lounge it’s different.  
 
Brett Mecum, IPCPR: testified in support of the bill. I have passed on to your stations two 
fliers about the IPCPR and also walks through what we see as premium cigars. The second 
is from two studies one that was from the FDA and the national institute of health and why 
it’s not a problem for underage smoking (see attachment #3). Questions on smoking or non-
smoking, most cigar bars its pure smoking. Also on cigarettes, I would recommend the 
committee, if there was a concern about cigarettes we have regulations in other states that 
prohibit cigarettes from being smoked in cigar lounges, to keep it completely cigar oriented. 
The other issue of things such as age, what I’d like to say is these establishments tend to be 
primarily mom and pop owned places that have quite a bit of knowledge about the products. 
These are people that love the product, love the industry. There are many people that enjoy 
premium aged wines and cigars are the same way, they’ve been aged a certain way. From 
an age perspective they also card vigorously and religiously. They are really small 
businesses when it comes down to it. We urge a do pass.  
 
(18:59)Chairman Klein: You’ve been in both cigar lounges and bars? How would that 
experience work?  
 
Brett: Yes, I believe we have two retailers in North Dakota that are members of our 
association. The difference is, basically a cigar bar has a bar and serves alcohol but usually 
a humidor, so they allow you to select a premium cigar and smoke a premium cigar on 
premise at the bar.  A lounge, tends to be merely the definition of lounge, it’s an area where 
you can go and smoke, you’ve got a room you have the ability to rent, lockers to keep your 
cigars in. It has chairs, tvs, entertainment systems, so you have a location to go in and sit 
down and enjoy your cigars. Certain folks who enjoy premium cigars may not be able to 
smoke at home, really what cigar bars do is provide an area where folks who do enjoy a cigar 
can get together with their friends and have discussions. They’re both areas for socialization 
and for like-minded people to enjoy a product together.  
 
Senator Burckhard: So are these places well ventilated? 
 
Brett: Every state has different regulations, a lot of them have what are called reverse 
pressure ventilation system which take the cigar air inside and suck it out through the roof. 
So as Senator Larson pointed out, a lot of the places he has been while you do not smell 
smoke you do smell tobacco, because you have the humidor and the areas in the back that 
are open, but as far as smoke, unless someone is smoking right next to you, you can’t really 
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smell the smoke. Another thing as technology gets better, we’ll keep developing ways to 
avoid having big smoke filled rooms.  
 
Chairman Klein: The expectation to go to these cigar bar/lounges, its not that I’m going to 
go meet friends and have a visit, so that clientele is fairly narrowly defined, and those same 
requirements as a percentage of sales required in other states? 
 
Brett: The 10% is pretty standard for cigar bars across the way because they also have the 
threshold of having to sell alcohol and also have their alcohol licensing. Another point is, the 
lounge percentage of 30% might be a little bit low, similar states have anywhere from 50-
75% of their sales need to be in cigars. In Wisconsin I had to push back on legislation that 
mandated the sales be 90% of their sales, we felt that was way too high. We are comfortable 
with 30%. But it’s at the body’s discretion.  
 
Chairman Klein: Other state have similar smoking laws as North Dakota, we prohibit 
smoking in any buildings. Would we be able to work with that? 

 
Brett: Each state has their own rules they operate by; I will use the example of Wisconsin. 
There are cigar lounges and cigar bars, that are grandfathered in. they had to have existed 
before the legislation was enacted. Arizona is a lot more loose, really just depends on the 
state. I did bring some cigars for the committee to see.  
 
Chairman Klein: We’ll do that after we adjourn. We’re preparing to kick this thing loose. How 
do you feel about the wording? 
 
Senator Larson: Yes, that’s fine. If it’s a simple change to remove the word glue, that’s fine 
I feel comfortable with that.   
 
Chairman Klein: I don’t think changing that one word will make a difference so we will not 
entertain anymore amendments. We will recess for now but we’ll bring this back this 
afternoon.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Should I get glue put on it? 
 
Chairman Klein: If you would like to.  
 
Chairman Klein: Closed the hearing on SB 2137.  
 
See attachment #3-4 for additional testimony submitted to the committee.  
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☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

Committee Clerk: Amy Crane 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to cigar bar.  
 

Minutes: 

 
Chairman Klein: Opened the committee work session on SB 2137. All members were 
present.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Moved to adopt amendment.  
 
Senator Burckhard: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Klein: I’m not seeing the word glue in here. It might be the case that it was added 
to the proposed amendment but was never actually in the bill, but regardless let the record 
show, we wish to proceed with the amendment without the word glue.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa: Move a do pass as amended.  
 
Senator Roers: Seconded.  
 
Chairman Klein: any discussion? Of all the important things we’ve worked on the last few 
week, we have spent some time on this one.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: I just think the idea flies in the face of our healthy living movement in 
North Dakota, it appears to be a step backwards. Even if you have to be an adult to step into 
the bar or lounge. That is a moot point as far as I’m concerned. It still is fostering that image, 
even for younger people who go by and see a place that looks interesting. It makes it more 
acceptable. As an adult who does occasionally smoke a cigar, and this is purely personal, 
but I don’t mind that it’s difficult to find a place to smoke a cigar in the winter. I do know on 
person in North Dakota who has designed his own place, so he has a smoking room. It’s very 
well ventilated so I get there once a year to smoke a cigar. So you know otherwise we can 
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smoke them outside the rest of the year. I just think it goes against the grain. And in my 
district, people aren’t for this. There are a lot of young people there and young families and 
they see this as a step backwards for all the progress we’ve been making over the past few 
years.  
 
Chairman Klein: And I can understand that. We’ve made a step back on the medical 
marijuana issue and we allowed inhalation. That was a step back so we’re trying to do the 
best we can do with the rules that have been given to us.  
 
Senator Kreun: As we look at page 3, starting around line 6 or 7 or 8, through line 14 and 
then it goes back down to defining what a lounge is and what a bar is. In my opinion they’re 
two completely different entities. The lounge is as you would basically have a humidor, pick 
what you like and then go into a lounge area for smoking and basically you could have snacks 
and small items for sale and I don’t have too much problem with that. But I do have a problem 
with the bar scenario that basically is an alcohol establishment or a cigar bar with the ability 
to be attracted to no different to what we had in the past. In my past life I was on the city 
council in Grand Forks for twelve years, and we passed a city ordinance for no smoking in 
bars prior to it was in the state of North Dakota and I feel if I permit both of these to go forward 
it’s not representing my district. The average age in my district is 21.9 years old. And so in 
promoting this activity in a bar scenario, I cannot support this bill.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 3 yeas, 3 nays, 0 absent.  
 
Motion failed.  
 
Senator Kreun: moved a do not pass as amended.  
 
Senator Piepkorn: Seconded.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 3 yeas, 3 nays, 0 absent.   
 
Motion failed.  
 
Senator Kreun: moved without committee recommendation as amended.  
 
Senator Roers: Seconded.  
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.   
 
Motion Carried.  
 
Vice Chairman Vedaa will carry the bill.  
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      Committee Clerk: Amy Crane 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to cigar bars.  
 
Minutes: 

 
It has come to the attention of the committee that a bill similar to this was last voted on in 
2012, which means that in order for this bill to pass it would need a 2/3 vote from the full 
body. Upon hearing this, members of the committee who had previously voted in favor of this 
bill proposed that they may change their votes on the Senate floor.  
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Adopted by the Industry, Business and Labor 
Committee 

February 11, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2137 

Page 1, line 2, after "bars" insert "and lounges" 

Page 2, line 6, remove "that generates ten percent or more of the bar's annual gross income 
from" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "the sale of cigars" with "or a cigar lounge, which has a valid certificate 
issued by the tax department under this subdivision" 

Page 2, line 10, after "bar" insert "or cigar lounge" 

Page 2, line 11, remove "and any premium tobacco product" 

Page 2, line 12, remove "tobacco" 

Page 2, line 13, after the underscored period insert: 
"ill" 

Page 2, line 13, replace "meeting" with "or cigar lounge asserting the bar or lounge meets" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "annually" with "before February first of each year" 

Page 2, line 15, after "revenue" insert "from the previous calendar year" 

Page 2, line 16, after the underscored period insert "Upon receipt of a report asserting 
compliance with the annual gross income requirements of this subdivision, the tax 
department shall issue an annual certificate. The tax department is not required to 
confirm the accuracy of information reported but may not issue a certificate absent 
supporting documentation from the bar or lounge. Information reported to the tax 
department under this subdivision is subject to the confidentiality provisions of section 
57-39.2-23. 

@" 

Page 2, line 16, replace ", the term "cigar'"' with "� 

@l "Bar" means a bar that generates ten percent or more of 
the bar's annual gross income from the sale of cigars . 

.(Q} "Cigar"" 

Page 2, line 17. remove "consisting only of tobacco. measures a" 

Page 2, replace line 18 with "of whole leaf tobacco: does not contain filler other than tobacco 
filler: does not contain binder other than tobacco binder: does not contain additives 
other than water: does not contain a filter, tip, or nontobacco mouthpiece: weighs at 
least six pounds per thousand count: and is made by hand, except to allow for the use 
of a manually operated machine to assist in bunching, rolling, and binding . 

.(g)_ "Cigar lounge" means a business dedicated, in whole or in 
part, to the smoking of cigars which generates thirty 
percent or more of the business's annual gross income 
from the sale of cigars." 

Page No. 1 19.0675.01004 
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Com Standing Committee Report 
February 12, 2019 8:16AM 

Module ID: s_stcomrep_27 _004 
Carrier: Vedaa 

Insert LC: 19.0675.01004 Title: 02000 

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE 
SB 2137: Industry, Business and Labor Committee (Sen. Klein, Chairman) recommends 

AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends BE PLACED 
ON THE CALENDAR WITHOUT RECOMMENDATION (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 
0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2137 was placed on the Sixth order on the 
calendar. 

Page 1, line 2, after "bars" insert "and lounges" 

Page 2, line 6, remove "that generates ten percent or more of the bar's annual gross income 
from" 

Page 2, line 7, replace "the sale of cigars" with "or a cigar lounge, which has a valid 
certificate issued by the tax department under this subdivision" 

Page 2, line 10, after "bar" insert "or cigar lounge" 

Page 2, line 11, remove "and any premium tobacco product" 

Page 2, line 12, remove "tobacco" 

Page 2, line 13, after the underscored period insert: 

ll
ill

ll 

Page 2, line 13, replace "meeting" with "or cigar lounge asserting the bar or lounge meets" 

Page 2, line 14, replace "annually" with "before February first of each year" 

Page 2, line 15, after "revenue" insert "from the previous calendar year" 

Page 2, line 16, after the underscored period insert "Upon receipt of a report asserting 
compliance with the annual gross income requirements of this subdivision, the tax 
department shall issue an annual certificate. The tax department is not required to 
confirm the accuracy of information reported but may not issue a certificate absent 
supporting documentation from the bar or lounge. Information reported to the tax 
department under this subdivision is subject to the confidentiality provisions of 
section 57-39.2-23. 

ill" 

Page 2, line 16, replace ", the term "cigar"" with "� 

.(fil "Bar" means a bar that generates ten percent or more of 
the bar's annual gross income from the sale of cigars . 

.(Q} "Cigar"" 

Page 2, line 17, remove "consisting only of tobacco, measures a" 

Page 2, replace line 18 with "of whole leaf tobacco: does not contain filler other than tobacco 
filler: does not contain binder other than tobacco binder: does not contain additives 
other than water: does not contain a filter, tip, or nontobacco mouthpiece: weighs at 
least six pounds per thousand count: and is made by hand, except to allow for the 
use of a manually operated machine to assist in bunching, rolling, and binding . 

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE 

.(g} "Cigar lounge" means a business dedicated, in whole or 
in part, to the smoking of cigars which generates thirty 
percent or more of the business's annual gross income 
from the sale of cigars." 

Page 1 s_stcomrep_27 _004 
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Insert LC: 19.0675.01004 Title: 02000 
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2019 TESTIMONY 

SB 2137 



Sb 2137 cigar bill 

This bill will allow cigar sales in north Dakota the change is that if 10% or more in total sale is cigar 
related they can smoke inside the facility. I would like to add these amendments to the bill to more align 
with the industry. 

There is also a concern to change 40 ring size to 30ring size. 

proposed change would replace page 2 lines 16-18 and it would read: "ANY ROLL OF 
TOBACCO WRAPPED IN TOBACCO WEIGHING 3 POUNDS PER THOUSAND OR MORE." 



19.0675.01000 

Sixty-sixth 

Legislative Assembly 

of North Dakota 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2137 

Page 2, line 17, replace "tobacco, measures a" with "whole leaf tobacco; contains onlY- tobacco 
filler; contains onlY- tobacco binder; contains no additives other than cigar glue and water; does 
not contain a filter, tip, or non-tobacco mouthJ;!iece; weighs at least six J:!Ounds J:!er thousand 
count; and is made bY- hand, exceP-t to allow for the use of a manually_QJ:!erated machine to assist 
in bunching, rolling, and binding;' 

Page 2, remove line 18 

77764199v2 



Collin Nelson 
Executive Tobacco 
Minot, ND 

First thing I would like to address about this amendment is to clarify the language proposed by Sen. 
Larsen. By no means are we seeking to allow cigar or any other type of smoking back into alcohol 
establishments, but rather are seeking to allow for the creation of smoking lounges dedicated to being a 
sanctuary for purveyors of premium tobacco products such as cigars, pipe and hookah tobacco. The 
location of these lounges would be connected to premium tobacco retail establishments. 

Century code 23-12-10, the "smoking ban," has nearly eliminated brick and mortar premium tobacco 
retailers in North Dakota and completely eliminated niche smoking bars, resulting in consumers to 
purchase products via online and mail order, thus causing loss of local revenue and tax dollars. When it 
passed, it took the foundation of a niche social group and setting away, as those that utilize these lounges 
in the past are not looking for the experience that one might get from the social setting of an alcohol 
establishment but, instead, seek a more relaxed atmosphere and like-minded individuals in which to 
socialize with, without the scrutiny of those that do not appreciate the odors said products. 

Many states have passed legislation banning public smoking but a greater percent of those states have 
created exemptions for such smoking lounges to great success. Everybody that enters a tobacco 
establishment already understands the health risks and accepts that risk, no different than those entering 
drinking establishments. Same could be said for those that work at said establishments. It is important to 
realize that premium tobacco smokers don't think of it as a habit as much as a hobby, one best enjoyed in 
a social setting. The creation of these lounges poses little to no risk to the greater public and give 
smokers a safe place to enjoy their products without being a nuisance to the general public. 

To conclude, not all of us want to go to a bar to socialize, yet our means of doing so was taken away 
when the no smoking referendum was passed, leaving a niche group without any place to go. We simply 
want the same courtesy extended to us that is given to other adult consumables and that can be solved 
with the passing of this amendment. 



Senate Industry, Business and Labor 
Chairman Jerry Klein 
January 15, 2019 

By: Shaun Sipma 
Minot Resident 
shaun.sipma@outlook.com 
701. 721.6839 

SB 2137 

Chairman Klein and Members of the Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee, 

my name is Shaun Sip ma. As a resident of Minot I want to say thank you for the opportunity to 

speak in support of Senate Bill 2137. 

This bill represents a very specific change to the North Dakota Century Code. This 

proposal aims to allow for Premium Tobacco Shops the choice to allow sampling of cigars at 

that business. This is a business model that currently exists in numerous states with strict anti-

smoking laws including South Dakota, Minnesota, New York, and California to name just a few. 

This isn't about reintroducing smoking into bars but rather a niche market of what would better 

be described as a cigar lounge. Cigar lounges themselves only allow for premium tobacco 

products not cigarettes. If you are not familiar with the difference a cigar is a premium tobacco 

product that only contains tobacco. There are no additives, no substances included just rolled 

tobacco. 

I would like to talk, for a moment, about impact. In Minot the Great Plains Smoke Shop 

operated from 2004 to 2017. In that time and until the smoking ban was passed by a statewide 

vote a cigar lounge existed. The people who patronized the lounge were there to for the very 



of smoking cigars. It was more than just a business though as numerous fund raisers were held 

to benefit local charities including in the fall of 2011 when over $10,000 was raised for the Red 

Cross following the 2011 Minot flood. Through the years North Dakota Cigarfest hosted by 

Great Plains Smoke Shop also raised tens of thousands of dollars for Wounded Warriors. 

People were employed and taxes were collected both from sales and from the property. Great 

Plains closed in 2017. The premium tobacco cigars are now purchased online. This was a 

viable business owned by a medically retired veteran who has since moved to North Carolina. 

I personally have never shied away from the fact that I smoke cigars. It is a product that 

is legal and I am free to make that choice. It did undermine choice however when the law 

changed that forcibly altered the Great Plains Smoke Shops business model and put it out of 

business. This is a matter of choice. If someone doesn't wasn't to smoke a cigar then they 

don't have to visit a cigar lounge. If someone doesn't like the smell of a cigar then they don't 

have to patronize a cigar shop. I would ask that you give consideration of choice to this matter 

as it is a very specific to premium tobacco and cigar lounges. 

Lastly I fully expect the same talking points to resurface in relation to the anti-tobacco 

movement that lead to the smoking ban. If we continue to legislate every potential risk out of 

existing we can quickly expect our freedom of choice to become vastly limited. That has and 

continues to proven itself in other states whether it be the size of soda-pop you can purchase 

or whether you can drink a beverage through a plastic straw. Where does it stop? 

Thank you for your time and consideration of this bill. I would stand for questions. 



• 

• 

• 

NORTH 

Dakota I Health 
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Industry, Business and 

Labor Committee 
January 15, 2019, 10:15 a.m. 

Good morning, Chairman Klein and members of the Committee. My name is 
Neil Charvat, and I am the Director of the Tobacco Prevention and Control 
Program for the North Dakota Department of Health. I am here to provide 
testimony in opposition to Senate Bill 2137. 

Tobacco prevention and control efforts in North Dakota focus on guidance 
provided by the Centers for Disease Prevention and Control (CDC) Best 

Practices for Comprehensive Tobacco Control Programs (Best Practices). Best 
Practices provide evidence-based interventions to prevent tobacco product 
use initiation; increase quitting tobacco use; and reduce exposure to 
secondhand smoke. Senate Bill 2137 attempts to create an environment to 
expose the public, especially employees, to secondhand smoke in the 
workplace. 

Reducing exposure to secondhand smoke helps eliminate sickness and death 
related to this exposure. According to the CDC, secondhand smoke exposure 
contributes to approximately 41,000 deaths among nonsmoking adults and 
400 deaths in infants each year. Secondhand smoke causes strokes, lung 
cancer, and coronary heart disease in adults. Non-smokers who breathe in 
secondhand smoke take in nicotine and toxic chemicals the same way 
smokers do. The more secondhand smoke you breathe, the higher the levels 
of these harmful chemicals in your body. There is no known safe level of 
secondhand smoke. Any exposure is harmful. 

In November 2012, North Dakotans overwhelmingly approved Initiated 
Measure 4. This measure removed exemptions from the 2005 State Smoke­
Free Law. The remaining exemptions mainly applied to bars, truck stops, and 
public lodging. The intent was to protect ALL North Dakota citizens from 
unnecessary exposure to secondhand smoke in indoor public venues. Senate 
Bill 2137 would again endanger the lives of North Dakota citizens. 

The 2012 North Dakota Smoke-Free Law is an exceptional public health policy 
achievement. It not only protects the public from the dangers of secondhand 
smoke exposure, but also addresses the emerging issues of the dangers of 
electronic nicotine delivery systems (ENDS), also known as e-cigarettes and 
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vaping. Many states that have good smoke-free laws, but do not address 
indoor ENDS use, are having a challenging time changing their current laws. 
The 2016 £-Cigarette Use Among Youth and Young Adults: A Report of the 
Surgeon General applauds the North Dakota 2012 Smoke-Free Law as a major 
policy success to protect our citizens. Making changes to such an effective 
policy tool will lessen the ability of this tool to protect public health. 

We have proof that policies like this reduce death and disability in our 
communities. A research paper from the University of North Dakota, Impact of 
a Comprehensive Smoke Free Law on Incidence of Heart Attacks at Rural 
Community Hospitals, that studied the effects of smoke-free workplaces in 
Grand Forks cited: 

Approximately 46,000 deaths from cardiovascular disease are associated 
with secondhand smoke exposure annually in the U.S .. This corresponds 
to roughly 7 50 deaths annually in North Dakota. Secondhand smoke, 
even in brief exposure, can increase risk of heart attack. Heart attack 
admissions fell by 30.6 7% as a percentage of total admissions after 
implementation of a comprehensive smoke free law, from 0.49% 
(83/7 6,702) to 0.34% (63/7 8,573). 

Senate Bill 2137 uses methods to give the appearance of mitigating the 
dangers of secondhand smoke indoors through ventilation. Ventilation 
systems do not work to protect the public from this danger. According to the 
American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers 
(ASH RAE) in their position statement on the subject: 

"At present the only means of effectively eliminating health risks 
associated with indoor exposure is to ban smoking activity. .. No other 
engineering approaches, including current and advanced dilution 
ventilation or air cleaning technologies, have demonstrated or should be 
relied upon to control health risks from ETS [environmental tobacco 
smoke} exposure in spaces where smoking occurs . . .  Because of ASHRAE's 
mission to act for the benefit of the public, it encourages elimination of 
smoking in the indoor environment as the optimal way to minimize ETS 
exposure." 

2 
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A cigar bar as proposed will be exposing all employees and patrons to the 
dangers discussed above. Additionally, there would be secondhand smoke 
affecting the employees and patrons of other businesses if the cigar bar is in 
the same building. 

Though the language of Senate Bill 2137 relates primarily to smoking cigars, 
the bill contains reference to "and any premium tobacco product". "Premium 
tobacco product" is an industry term and does not have an official definition 
of products in state statute. The vagueness of this language could lead to 
interpreting various tobacco products as "premium". This could include 
cigarettes and ENDS. The vague language could lead to difficult enforcement 
for both employees of the establishment and law enforcement. It would be 
very difficult to determine if bar patrons were using premium or non-premium 
products in the establishment. 

Senate Bill 2137 seeks to change the current smoke-free law to create places 
that put patrons, employees, and anyone in the immediate area at risk of 
sickness and death. Therefore, we oppose Senate Bill 2137. 

• This concludes my testimony, I am happy to answer any questions you may 
have . 

• 
3 
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American Cancer Society 

Cancer Action Network 

240 I 46 th Ave SE, Ste . I 02, Mandan, 
ND 
70 1 .47 1 . 2859  
Deb.knuth@cancer.org 

Senate Committee on Industry, Business and Labor 
Jerry Klein, Chairman 

My name is Deb Knuth and I am the Government Relations Director for the North Dakota American 
Cancer Society Cancer Action Network. 

The American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network (ACS CAN),  the nonprofit, non-partisan advocacy 
affiliate of the American Cancer Society advocates for public policies that reduce death and suffering 
from cancer including policies targeted at reducing tobacco use. ACS CAN strongly opposes SB 2137, a 
bill that is relating to cigar bars. 

North Dakota enjoys one of the most comprehensive smoke-free laws in the nation and its citizens are 
protected by having smoking prohibited in all enclosed areas of public places and places of employment. 

Secondhand smoke is a serious health hazard. Ventilation technologies do not sufficiently protect 
individuals from the harmful effects of breathing in secondhand smoke. The only effective way to fully 
protect nonsmokers from exposure to secondhand smoke is to eliminate smoking in indoor public 
spaces. Cigars are a public health risk and a leading cause of laryngeal, oral and esophageal cancers. 

Cigar use is a significant public health concern. Cigars-just like cigarettes and other tobacco products­
are not safe. They contain many of the same cancer-causing substances as cigarettes and other tobacco 
products. All tobacco products, including cigars, contain nicotine, which may induce dependence and 
harm health. Cigars also produce secondhand smoke that is dangerous for non-smokers. 

Regulation of cigars is part of ACS CAN's comprehensive approach to reducing tobacco use and exposure 
to secondhand smoke in the United States. We must include cigars in smoke-free laws: Secondhand 
smoke from cigars poses significant health risks to smokers and those around them and should be 
included as part of any smoke-free law. This includes prohibiting cigar use in cigar and tobacco shops, 
bars identified as "cigar bars," gaming facilities and wherever else smoking is prohibited. There is neither 
a public health nor fiscal justification for giving cigars of any size preferential treatment. 

There are no safe tobacco products, and there is no safe level of exposure to secondhand smoke. ACS 
CAN does not support smoke-free laws that allow for separating smokers from nonsmokers or 
ventilating building as alternatives to requiring a 100 percent smoke-free environment, as the evidence 
is overwhelming that these measures cannot eliminate exposure of nonsmokers to secondhand smoke. 

ACS CAN's work to create 100 percent smoke-free environments is part of a comprehensive approach to 
addressing tobacco use and exposure to secondhand smoke in the United States. 

Page 1 of 2 
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ACS CAN supports local ,  state, and federal initiatives to el iminate publ ic  exposure to secondhand smoke, 
including 100 percent smoke-free laws, prohibiting smoking in al l workplaces, including restaurants, bars 
and casinos which are key to protect nonsmokers, chi ldren and workers from the deadly effects of 
secondhand smoke. 

The American Cancer Society Cancer Action Network urges legis lators to oppose SB 2137 . 

Thank you for a l lowing me to testify. Are there any questions? 

Page 2 of 2 
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Senate I nd ust ry, Bus i ness, and  Labor Comm ittee fo r the 66
th 

N D  Leg is l at ive Assem b ly 

Cha i rm a n  K le i n ,  a n d  mem bers of the Senate I n d ustry, Bus i ness, a nd  La bor Com m ittee, he l lo, 

my n ame  i s  H eather  Austi n and  I am the Executive D i rector fo r Tobacco Free North Da kota . 

Tha n k  you so m uch  for you r  t ime th i s  morn i ng .  

Today I am here to encourage a Do Not Pass on SB 2137, or  the Ciga r Bar  B i l l .  The m iss ion of 

Tobacco F ree No rth  Da kota is to improve and protect the pub l i c  hea lth of a l l  North Da kota ns 

by reduc i ng the ser ious hea lth and  economic  conseq uences of tobacco use, the state's n umber 

one ca use of p reventa b le  d isease and death . By erod i ng our  i ndoor smoke free a i r  law, by 

maki ng  except ions  to a l low even one type of product to be smoked or ae roso l i zed, we do a 

serious  d isserv ice to o u r  c it izens and  to our  state . 

Ciga rs a re a pub l i c  hea lth r isk and  a lead ing cause of severa l ca ncers .  U nfortunate ly, sa les of 

c iga rs cont i n ue  u n abated . Wh i l e  ciga rette consu m pt ion decreased by nea r ly 40 percent from 

2000 to 2015, c iga r consumpt ion increased by 92 percent . i Ciga r use a mong youth a lmost as 

common  as  c iga rette smok ing. 

By a l l ow i ng c iga r ba rs, we beg in to renorma l ize smok ing to ou r  youth,  u ndo ing  yea rs of work 

by ou r  pub l i c  hea l th experts across North Da kota . There is a l ready a serious  d isconnect i n  

youth views con cern i ng vap i ng vs . smoki ng, with t he  former seem i ng to  be safer  i n  t he  eyes of 

ou r  teens .  We do not want to confuse the issue even fu rther  by maki ng  ciga rs seem safe 

enough to smoke i n doors without serious  hea lth consequences for those exposed .  There is no 

safe l eve l of tobacco exposu re .  i i  

We  a lso know tha t  vent i lat ion systems sim p ly do not work to  e l im i nate a l l  second hand  smoke.  

Wh i l e  they a re somet imes promoted as a way to reduce exposu re to secondhand  smoke, 

vent i l a t ion  ca n not remove it a l l , and  does not pu rify the a i r  at rates fast enough to protect 

peop le  from the  ha rmfu l  toxi ns .  The Surgeon Genera l  has  conc l uded that even ta k ing the steps 

of sepa rat ing smoke rs from nonsmokers, c lea n i ng the a i r, a nd  vent i l a t ing bu i l d i ngs ca nnot 

e l im i n ate exposu re of nonsmokers to secondhand  smoke .  The on ly effective way to fu l ly 

p rotect peop le  from exposu re to secondhand  smoke i s  to comp lete ly e l im i nate smok ing i n  

i n door p ub l i c spaces . i i i  
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F i n a l l y, I wou l d  l i ke to po int out that North  Da kota has one of the best i ndoor  smoke free a i r  

l aws i n  the  nat ion p rotect ing ou r  c it izens .  We  need to  be  proud o f  that a nd  we  need to 

p reserve it . Once one  except ion is made, how soon wi l l  it be before a nother  req uest appea rs 

i n  front of o u r  Leg is l at u re? With e lect ron ic  prod uct use at ep idem ic  l eve l s  for ou r  youth, and  

w i th  new p rod ucts be ing  i ntrod uced a t  a l ightn i ng pace, we ca n't r i s k  open i ng the door  for 

fu rther  e ros ion of a p roven hea l th po l i cy that creates a hea lth ie r  state a nd  that  saves l ives . 

Aga i n ,  tha n k  you fo r th i s  t ime i n  front of you, Cha i rman K le i n and  the  Com m ittee .  It i s  very 

a pprec iated .  P l ease vote Do Not Pass on SB 2137 .  

May I ta ke a ny questions?  

Heathe r  Aust i n  

Execut ive D i rector, Tobacco Free North Da kota 

Ce l l :  701-527-2811  

heather@tfnd .o rg 

www.tfnd . o rg 

i .  America n Ca ncer  Society. Ca ncer Facts & F igu res 2017 .  At l a nta, GA: America n Cancer 

Society, 2017 

i i .  Su rgeon Genera l  Report 2010 

https ://www.su rgeongenera l .gov/l i b ra ry/reports/secondhand-smoke-consumer.pdf and  

N ati ona l  Ca ncer  I n st i tute Dec. 5, 2016 https ://www.ca ncer .gov/news-events/press­

re leases/2016/low-i ntens ity-smoki ng-ri s k  

i i i .  U .S .  Depa rtment of  Hea lth and Human Se rvices ( H HS ) .  The  Hea lth Consequences of 

I nvo l u nta ry Exposu re to Tobacco Smoke :  A Report of the Surgeon Genera l .  U . S .  Depa rtment of 

Hea lth a nd  H u m a n  Serv ices, Centers for D i sease Control and  P revent ion ,  Coord i nat ing Cente r 

for Hea lth P romot ion ,  N at iona l  Center for Ch ron i c  D i sease Prevent ion and  Hea lth P romot ion,  

Offi ce on  Smok ing  a nd Hea lth, 2006 . 
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TESTIMONY OF SB 2137 

Valerie Schoepf, President 
Bismarck Tobacco Free Coal ition 
6959 80th St NE 
Bismarck ND 58503 
701-204-7605 

Thank you for your  time today, Chairman Klein and members of the Senate Industry, 

Business and Labor Committee. I'm Valerie Schoepf, and I'm the President of the 

Bismarck Tobacco Free Coal ition. Our Coal ition is a pro-active organization dedicated to 

promoting a healthy, tobacco free environment. We strongly oppose SB 2137. 

I would l ike to share about the history of the ND Smoke Free Law. On November 6, 

2012, every county in the state voted in favor of becoming smoke-free. The law 

advances publ ic health by protecting more workers, residents and visitors from 

secondhand smoke exposure in public places and places of employment. Voters 

overwhelming ly supported the right to breathe clean indoor a i r, and specifica l ly, equal 

protection for everyone, including bar workers and patrons. 

SB 2 137 would reverse the wil l  of the voters from 2012; it would al low workers and 

i nd ividuals to be exposed to secondhand smoke from cigars or premium tobacco. The 

term premium tobacco does not have a specific definition, which may a l low for a variety 

of tobacco products to be used. Either way this bi l l  would el iminate public health 

protection for our community from secondhand smoke. Protecting the health and safety 

of community is one of the main purposes of government. Government regulates a l l  

kinds. of health functions in businesses, including food handl ing, food storage and 

sanitation. Smoke-free law is no d ifferent. 

Bismarck Tobacco Free Coal ition urges legislators to oppose SB 2137 . 



Hello, my name is Kira Lampton. I do work in the field of tobacco 

prevention education; however, today I am here today on my own time. 

There are a lot of facts and statistics I can give you. For example, in 

20 1 2  67% of ND voters passed the indoor smoke-free air law to provide 

healthier environments for not just organization patrons, but also the 

employees as well .  I can tell you that the U.S .  Environmental Protection 

Agency and the Centers for Disease Control, among others, have studies 

that show no amount of ventilation completely eliminates secondhand 

smoke. Not only does it not eliminate the particles , but there is also no 

amount of secondhand smoke that is considered "safe." The Food and 

Drug Administration (FDA) states that cigars are NOT a safe alternative 

to cigarettes .  In fact, cigars contain 10  times the amount of nicotine, 2 

times the tar, and have greater than 5 times the amount of carbon 

monoxide . The FDA also states that the secondhand smoke from cigars 

is equal to, if not more toxic than cigarette secondhand smoke . 

I can go on about statistics and facts ; however, I am here to let you know 

what I observe in my work and in my community. I am a part of 

multiple coalitions, and I also do a lot of outreach and volunteering in 

our community . When I bring up tobacco prevention topics, whether it 

be for work or with friends, or even with random strangers while waiting 

in a store, the overwhelming response I get is appreciation for our 

smoke-free law, and growing concern for our youth initiating into new 

tobacco products . Some of the people I have spoken with state that 

tobacco was one of the first addictions they had, and one of the last they 

quit; because it is one of the hardest addictions to quit. In the last couple 

of years, our community created a coalition dedicated to not only 

helping people quit addictions, but also creating community support for 

recovery. This Committee on Addiction continues in our community, 

and works to help people recover from all addictions, including tobacco . 

Therefore, I find this bill counterproductive to the efforts being made in 

our community, and across our state, to creating and sustaining healthier 

communities and preventing exposure to secondhand smoke. 



• SB 2137 

Industry, Business and Labor Committee 

January 15, 2019 

Good morning Chairman Klein and members of the I ndustry, Business a nd Labor 

Committee. My name is Mary Korsmo and I am the Executive D irector of the North 

Dakota State Association of City and County Health Officia ls, or SACCHO. A member 

association, SACCHO is comprised of a ll 28 ND pub lic health un its. I am here today in 

opposit ion  of SB 2 137. 

In 2012, our cu rrent comprehensive, smoke-free law passed with the support of 

66% of N D  voters. The ND  smoke-free law was created to protect workers, res idents and 

visitors from exposure to secondhand smoke in public p laces and p laces of 

• employment. Secondhand smoke has been proven to cause numerous hea lth p roblems 

in adu lts includ ing coronary heart d isease, stroke, and lung cancer. 

• 

Secondhand smoke is the combination of smoke from the burn ing end of a 

tobacco product and  the smoke exhaled by the user. Secondhand smoke conta ins more 

than 7,000 chemica ls; hundreds a re toxic, and about 70 can cause cancer. There is no 

risk-free level of secondhand smoke. Even b rief exposure can cause immediate harm. 

Accord ing to the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC). estab lish ing a 100% 

smoke-free environment is the only effective way to fu lly protect nonsmokers from 

secondhand smoke. We have that environment now within a ll enclosed a reas of public 

and work p laces in N D  with our cu rrent smoke-free law . 



S6 m, t t/1 s/11 Atr tt 10 fl :) 
Cigars a re not a safer a lternative to ciga rettes as they conta in many of the same 

cancer-causing substances as ciga rettes and other tobacco p roducts. 

You may be aware of d iscussion  regard ing ventilation systems. The CDC, after much 

research, has determined that ventilation systems do not protect peop le from the 

dangers of secondhand smoke. Th is conclusion is a lso supported by the American 

Society of Heating Refrigeration  and Air-conditioning engineers, a lso known as ASHRAE. 

• Conventional air c lean ing systems can remove large particles but not the smaller 

particles or the gases found in secondhand smoke. 

• Current heating, ventilating, and a ir conditioning systems a lone do not control 

secondhand smoke exposure. In fact, these systems may d istribute secondhand 

smoke th roughout a build ing .  

• Even separately enclosed, separately exhausted, negative-pressu re smoking 

rooms do not keep secondhand smoke from spilling into adjacent a reas. 

These a re a few of the reasons, supported by many stud ies, the North Dakota 

Association of City and County Health Officia ls u rges a DO NOT PASS on  SB  2137. 

• 

• 

• 
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1 9.0675.0 1 001  
Tit le . 

Prepared by thA�g?./JiJe i�nil1s1aff � \I:- I 
Senator 0 .  Larsen 

January 22 ,  201 9 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2 1 37 

Page 1 ,  l i ne 2 ,  after  "bars" insert "and lounges" 

Page 2, l i ne  7, rep lace the fi rst u nderscored semicolon with "or a cigar lounge, which" 

Page 2 ,  l ine 1 0, after "bar" insert "or cigar lounge" 

Page 2, l i ne  1 1 , remove "and any premium tobacco product" 

Page 2, l i ne  1 3, after  the underscored period i nsert :  

"ill" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne  1 3, after "bar" i nsert "or cigar lounge" 

Page 2, l i ne  1 6, after the underscored period i nsert: 

"!2.)." 

Page 2 ,  l i ne  1 6, rep lace ", the term "cigar"" with "� 

.(fil "Cigar"" 

Page 2, l i ne 1 7, remove "measures a" 

Page 2 ,  l i ne  1 8 , rep lace "number forty ring size or larger" with "contains on ly tobacco binder 
and no addit ives except for water and cigar glue" 

Page 2, after l i ne  1 8 , i nsert :  

Renumber accord ing ly 

".(Q} "Cigar lounge" means a business dedicated, i n  whole or in  
part, to the smoking of cigars wh ich generates th i rty 
percent or more of the business's ann ual gross i ncome 
from the sale of cigars. " 

Page No. 1 1 9. 0675 .01 001 
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19.0675 .01003 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislat ive Council staff for 
Senator 0. Larsen 

January 25, 2019 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2137 

Page 1, l ine 2, after "bars" insert "and lounges" 

Page 2, l ine 6, remove "that generates ten percent or more of the bar's annual gross income 
from" 

Page 2, l ine 7, replace "the sale of cigars" with "or a cigar lounge, which has a valid certificate 
issued by the tax department under this subdivision" 

Page 2, l ine 10, after "bar" insert "or cigar lounge" 

Page 2, l ine 11, remove "and any premium tobacco product" 

Page 2, l ine 12, remove "tobacco" 

Page 2, l ine 13, after the underscored period insert: 

"ill" 
Page 2, l ine 13, replace "meeting" with "or cigar lounge asserting the bar or lounge meets" 

Page 2, l ine 14, replace "annually" with "before February first of each year" 

Page 2, l ine 15, after "revenue" insert "from the previous calendar year" 

Page 2, l ine 16, after the underscored period insert "Upon receipt of a report asserting 
compliance with the annual gross income requirements of this subdivision, the tax 
department shall issue an annual certif icate. The tax department is not required to 
confirm the accuracy of information reported but may not issue a certif icate absent 
supporting documentation from the bar or lounge. Information reported to the tax 
department under this subdivision is subject to the confidentiality provisions of section 
57-39. 2-23. 

ill" 
Page 2, l ine 16, replace ", the term "cigar"" with "� 

.(fil "Bar" means a bar that generates ten percent or more of 
the bar's annual gross income from the sale of cigars . 

.(Ql "Cigar"" 

Page 2, l ine 17, remove "consisting only of tobacco, measures a" 

Page 2, replace l ine 18 with "of whole leaf tobacco; does not contain filler other than tobacco 
filler; does not contain binder other than tobacco binder: does not contain additives 
other than cigar glue and water; does not contain a filter, tip, or nontobacco 
mouthpiece; weighs at least six pounds per thousand count; and is made by hand, 
except to allow for the use of a manually operated machine to assist in bunching, 
rolling, and binding. 

".(Q}_ "Cigar lounge" means a business dedicated, in whole or in 
part, to the smoking of cigars which generates thirty 

Page No . 1 19. 0675.01003 
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Abstract 

The r isk of l u ng cance r  is g reater i n  c iga rette smokers than i n  c igar  o r  p ipe  smokers .  I n  
Great Brita i n , wh ich has a very h i gh  l u ng -cancer death rate , c iga rette tobacco (fl ue­
cured) has a h i gh  sugar  content (up to 20%) wh i le c igar tobacco (a i rcu red) has a low 
sugar content (0 . 5-2%) .  Determ inat ions of the sugar  content  of the tobacco and the pH 
of the smoke of c iga rettes from more than  30  cou ntr ies , and  of  a n u m ber  of c igar and 
p i pe tobaccos , have been carried out .  The ma in  d ifferences fou nd between  the 
cha racterist ics of c iga rette and ciga r  and p i pe tobaccos a re :  

• ( 1 ) 

The h i gh  sugar  content of the popu lar  b rands of c igarettes now smoked i n  many 
countr ies , wh ich resu lts i n  the p rod uct ion of a smoke of ac id p H ,  becom ing  
p rog ressive ly  more acid d u ring  t he  cou rse of  smok i ng ,  part icu la rly towards the  butt­
end of the c iga rette when the ta r content of the smoke is  at its h i ghest ;  

• (2) 

The low sugar  content of c igar tobacco and of the a i r-d r ied tobacco used in the 
c iga rettes of certa i n  countr ies, wh ich g ives a smoke of less ac id pH becoming  
p rog ressively more a lka l i ne  du ri ng  the  cou rse of  smok i ng ;  

• (3) 

The cond it ions  of smoking in a p i pe whereby the smoke from al l  types of tobacco , with 
both h ig h  and low sugar  content ,  i s  less acid than that of most c iga rettes ,  and 
becomes p rog ress ive ly more a l ka l i ne  d u ri ng  the cou rse of  smok i ng . 

S i nce the sat isfact ion derived from smoking i s  ma i n ly due  to the pharmaco log ica l effects 
of n icot i ne ,  it is suggested that the lower l ung  cancer  i nc idence i n  c iga r  and  p i pe 
smokers may be re lated to the fact that n i cot i ne  is  more read i ly absorbed i n  the form of 
the free base , at a l ka l i ne  p H ,  than i n  the form of a stab le salt ,  at ac id p H .  To obta i n  the 
same degree of " n icot ine satisfact ion"  as in smok ing a p ipe  o r  c iga r , the smoker  of 
c iga rettes g iv ing a n  acid smoke wou ld tend to smoke more ,  a nd to encou rage more 
p ro longed and extens ive contact of the smoke with the mouth and b ronchus ,  and to 
take the smoke i nto h is l ungs , wh ich wou ld thus suffer g reate r exposu re to the 
"ca rc inogen ic" effects of the smoke than wou ld  be the case with c iga r  o r  p i pe smokers .  

I n  p re l im i na ry attem pts to  devise a "safer" c iga rette , t he  add it ion of substances wh ich 
g ive r ise to an a l ka l i ne  vapour  at the usua l  temperatu re of combust ion of c iga rettes has 
been shown to reverse the character of the smoke of h i gh  sugar  (fl uecu red) tobacco 
cigarettes so that it then resembles that of c igars and p i pes i n  becom ing  p rog ressively 
more a lka l i ne  d u ri ng  the cou rse of smoki ng .  



19.0675.01 003 

Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 
of North Dakota 

Introduced by 

Senators 0. Larsen ,  Vedaa 

Representatives Becker, D. Ruby 

SENATE BILL NO. 21 37 

1 A Bl LL for an Act to amend and reenact sect ion 23-12- 10 of the North Dakota Century Code ,  

2 relat ing to cigar bars and lounges . 

3 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA: 

4 SECTION 1 .  AMENDMENT. Sect ion 23-12-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

5 amended and reenacted as follows: 

6 23-12-10. Smoking restrictions - Exceptions - Reta l iation - Appl ication. 

7 1. In order to protect the public health and welfare and to recogn ize the need for 

8 i ndividuals to breathe smoke-free ai r, smoking is proh ibited i n  all enclosed areas of: 

9 

1 0  

a. Public places; and 

b. Places of employment .  

1 1  2 .  Smoking is proh ibited with in  twenty feet [6. 1 0  meters] of entrances, exits, operable 

1 2  

1 3  

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

1 9  

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

windows, air i ntakes, and ventilat ion systems of enclosed areas in  which smoking is 

proh ibited. Owners, operators, managers, employers, or other persons who own or 

control a public place or place of employment may seek to rebut the presumpt ion that 

twenty feet [6. 10 meters] is a reasonable min imum distance by making applicat ion to 

the director of the local health department or distr ict i n  which the public place or  place 

of employment is located. The presumption will be rebutted if the applicant can show 

by clear and convincing evidence that, given the unique ci rcumstances presented by 

the locat ion of entrances, exits, windows that open ,  ventilat ion i ntakes, or other 

factors, smoke will not i nfiltrate or reach the entrances,  exits, open windows, or 

ventilat ion i ntakes or enter i nto such public place or place of employment and, 

therefore ,  the public health and safety will be adequately protected by a lesser 

distance. 

24 3 .  The followi ng areas are exempt from subsect ions 1 and 2: 

Page No. 1 1 9.0675.01003 
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25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 
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Sixty-sixth 
Legislative Assembly 

a. Private residences, except those residences used as a ch i ld care , adult day care, 

or health care faci l ity subject to l i censure by the department of human services. 

b .  Outdoor areas of places o f  employment ,  except those l isted i n  subsection 2 .  

c .  Any area that is  not com monly accessib le to  the  publ ic  and which is  part o f  an 

owner-operated business hav ing no employee other than the owner-operator. 

d. A bar that generates ten peyc-eAt or more ef.me-baf�&-annual gross income--ff-Om 

the-caic of cigarsor a cigar lounge , which has a val id cert ificate issued by th�_ta� 

department under th is subdivision : has a hum idor on the prem ises; is enclosed 

by so l id wal ls or windows, a cei l i ng, and a sol id door; and is equipped with a 

venti lat ion system by which exhausted air is not reci rculated to nonsmoking 

areas and smoke is not backstreamed i nto nonsmoking areas. A bar or cigar 

iounge meeting the regui rements of th is subdivision may permit the smoking of 

cigars-arni----aRy--e�-ee-:f*OOU§-t purchased on the premises, but may 

not perm it the smoking of any other-tobacco product on the prem ises. 

_____ (J) A bar meetifillor cigar  lounge assert ing the bar or lounge meets the 

requi rements of th is subdivision shal l report to the tax department 

anfH:Jaflybefore February first of each vear, on a form prescribed by the 

department, the revenue from the previous calendar year  generated from 

the sale of cigars as a percentage of annual gross income. Upon receipt of 

a report asserting compliance with the annual  gross i ncome requirements of 

this subdivision , the tax department sha! i  issue an annual certificate. The tax 

department is not requ i red to confi rm the accuracy of information reported 

but may not issue a cert ificate absent support ing documentation from the 

par or lounge . I nformation reported to the tax department under this 

.§ubdivision is subject to the confidentia l ity provis ions of sect ion 57-39 .2-23 .  

------'-2=',_1 __,_F
-=o'-'-r

-"'-'
pum.oses of  th is  subdivision,--tRe term "cigar" : 

(a) "Bar" means a bar that generates ten percent or more of the bar's 

annual gross income from the sale of cigars . 

________ (b) "Cigar" means an i ndividual ro l l  of tobacco which has a wraR,ger or  

cover consisting only--e:f--tobacco, measures a number forty ring size or 

larger, and is sold 1Nithout a filter. of whole leaf tobacco: does not 

Page No . 2 19.0675.01003 
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conta in  fi l ler other than tobacco fi l ler; does not contain b inder other 

than tobacco binder; does not conta in  add it ives other than ciga@ 

9nd_water: does not conta in a fi lter, t ip. or nontobacco mouthpiece: 

weighs at least six pounds per thousand count and is made by hand . 

except to a l low for the use of a manual ly operated machine to assist 
jn bunch ing. ro l l i ng, and bind ing . 

(c) "Cigar lounge" means a business dedicated, in  whole or in  part, to the 

smoking of cigars which generates tb).cty percent or more of the 

business's annual  gross income from the sale of cigars . 

1 0  4. Smoking as part of a trad itional American Ind ian spi ritual or cultu ral ceremony is not 

1 1  prohibited . 

1 2  5 .  No person or employer shal l  d ischarge, refuse to hire, or i n  any manner reta l iate 

1 3  against an employee, appl icant for employment, or other person because that person 

1 4  

1 5  

1 6  

1 7  

1 8  

asserts or exercises any rights afforded by this sect ion or reports or attempts to 

prosecute a vio lation of this section .  An employee who works in a sett ing where an 

employer a l lows smoking does not waive or surrender any legal rights the employee 

may have against the employer or any other party. Violations of this subsection shal l 

be a class B m isdemeanor. 

1 9  6. This section may not be i nterpreted or construed to perm it smoking where it is 

20 otherwise restricted by other appl icable laws. 

2 1  7. Notwithstand ing any other provision of this chapter, an owner, operator, manager or 

22 other person i n  control of an establ ishment, faci l ity, or  outdoor area may declare that 

23 enti re establ ishment, faci l ity, or outdoor area as a nonsmoking place. 
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ET I G THE RECORD STRAIGHT: 
I & FDA DATA ON PREM IUM CIGAR USE 

· D PU BL IC  H EAL TH I M PACT 

Data from recent  government-fu nded and g ove r nment- l ed  stud i es  def in i t ive l y  p rove that  p re m i u m  c i ga rs a re a 

u n i q ue  p roduc t  category tha t  a re a lmost exc l u s ive l y  enj oyed by o l de r  a d u lts i n freq u e nt l y. 

WHY THIS MATTERS: 
I PCPR  used t he  FDA's com ment  per iod as  an opportu n ity to rem i n d  the  a d m i n istra t ion  t h at even t he i r  own d ata 

does not su pport the  regu l a t ion  of prem i u m  c iga rs .  These data po i nts p rove why regu la t i ng  c iga rs is  i neffect ive 

i n  acco m p l i s h i n g  that  goa l .  

.02% 

� LJ 

On l y  .02% reported smok ing  a 

p rem i um  c i ga r  i n  t he  past 30 d ays 

The average age  of an i n d iv id u a l 's 

f i r s t  p rem i um  c i ga r  is 30 years o ld­

compared to 16 .7 years o ld for c iga rettes 

The average p rem i um  c iga r  consumer  

. smokes 1 . 2  days out of every 30-
, 

com pa red  to 29 .6  days out  of 30  for 

c i ga rette smokers 

THE STUDIES: 

@ 

Over h a lf (52%) of cu r re n t  p re m i u m  c i g a r  

smokers (25 and  o lder) have a college degree­

com pa red to 32% ac ross t he  US popu l a t i on  

The re i s  no meaningful correlation betwee n  

p re m i u m  c i g a rs a n d  c i ga rette smok i n g  

97% o f  a l l  p rem i u m  c i g a r  consu m e rs d o  n ot 

smoke da i l y  

N o  statist ica l ly  s ign ificant increase in  r isk 

fo r smok i ng  re l a ted  d i seases ca n be  fou n d  

betwee n  non - d a i l y  p re m i u m  c ig a r  smokers  

and  no n -smokers  i n  g e n e ra l  

PATH Study: The Population Assessment of Tobacco a n d  Health (PATH) study  i s  a jo i n t  stu dy b y  t h e  FDA a n d  

t h e  Nati o n a l  I n st i tutes of Hea l th  ( N I H) that covers a m u l t i -ye a r  c ross sect ion o f  youth  a n d  a d u l t .  PATH i s  o n e  of 

the few govern ment  stud ies  that effective ly  i dent i f ied a n d  ana lyzed d ata spec i f i c  to p re m i u m  c i ga rs .  

National  Longitudina l  Mortal ity (NLM) Study: An a rt i c le  p ub l i s hed  i n  t he  Jou r n a l  of Ameri ca n Med ic i n e  

(JAMA) a na lyzed t h e  N L M  study wh i ch  t racked a popu l at i on  o f  350 ,000 Amer i ca n s  fo r nea r l y  3 decades .  The  

a rt i c le ,  Assoc iati on  o f  C iga rette, C i ga r, a nd  P ipe  Use w i t h  Mo rta l i ty R i sk  i n  t he  US  Pop u l at i on ,  exa m i ned  t he  

re la t i o n s h i p  between morta l i ty, r i s k  a nd  use  ac ross a r ange  o f  tobacco products  ove r  a popu l at i on  of over 

3 50 ,00 i nd iv i d u a l s  for nea r l y  3 decades .  
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WHAT IS THE INTERNATIONAL PREMIUM CIGAR & PIPE RETAILERS (IPCPR)? 
Founded i n  1933 ,  the IPCPR is a not-for-profit trade  assoc iat ion represent i n g  prem i um  reta i l  tobaccon ists a n d  
t he i r  s upp l i e r s .  Rep resent i ng over 3 ,000 reta i l  sto res ac ross t h e  U n ited States a n d  more t h a n  350 ma nufa ctu rers ,  
d i s t r i b u tors and serv ice providers ,  I PCPR is the u l ti mate a uthori ty o n  the p rem i um  c igar and p ipe tobacco 
i n d u stry. I PCPR 's m i ss ion is to p rotect and g row the p rem i um  c igar and p ipe tobacco i n d ustry th rough i n n ovat i on ,  
educat ion ,  advocacy, ma rket resea rch , a nd  t he  fac i l itati on  of re lati onsh i ps .  

WHAT IS A PREMIUM CIGAR? 
Prem i um c i ga rs a re the handc rafted , a rt isa n a l  tobacco l eaf p roduct on  the ma rket. U n l i ke othe r  products ,  a 
p rem i um  c i ga r  takes 3-5 yea rs to h i t  the ma rket, a n d  is on l y  compr ised of th ree i n g red ients ;  1 00% natu ra l who le  
tobacco l eaf , water a nd  natu ra l  vegetab l e  g um-no f lavor i ngs  o r  othe r  add it ives tha t  a re fou nd  i n  othe r  tobacco 
p ro d ucts .  That i s  why p rem i um  c iga rs represent  .01% of the ent i re tobacco p roduct m a rket. Data from the N I H  & 
FDA show that  u n l i ke other tobacco p roducts , prem i um  c ig a rs a re a l uxury item ,  not a n icoti n e  de l ivery dev ice . 

WHO DOES I PCPR REPRESENT? 
I PCPR rep resents sma l l  bus i ness mom & pop shops that for decades h ave made  up the backbone of ma i n street 
Ameri c a .  P rem i um  c iga r  reta i l e rs ,  a lso known as tobaccon i sts , a re l ocated i n  a l l  50 states .  Ma ny of I PCPR  
members ·  bus i nesses a re fam i l y-owned sma l l  bus i nesses, spa n n i n g  seve ra l  gene rat ions t h a t  emp loy a n  ave rage 
of  6-7 members o f  t he  loca l commun i ty. I PCPR member  reta i l e rs a re spec ia l ty b r i ck a n d  mo rta r store fronts a n d  
l ounges  where Amer i cans from a l l  wa l ks  o f  l i fe come  togethe r  i n  a s ha red pass ion . 

I PCPR M E M BER FAST FACTS 

I 75% s i ng l e  
owne r  stores 

92% 
1 

92% c ig a r  l ounges or 
I spec ia lty c ig a r  stores 

�� 1 
80% of a l l  s a l es a re 

I p rem i um c iga rs 

For more i nfo rmati o n ,  p lease contact Rachel Ha l l ,  I PCPR Sen io r  D i recto r  of State Affa i rs ,  by ema i l i n g  
rachel@ipcpr.org or ca l l i n g  434-989-6492 (mob i l e) .  



N OLA, S IBL - Crane, Amy 

From: 
Sent: 

Reba Mathern -Jacobson < Reba.Mathern -Jacobson@ lung .org > 
Monday, February 11 ,  2019 07:49 

To: N O LA, S I BL  - Crane, Amy 
Subject: SB 2 137 - Do Not Pass 

CAUTION : This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know they 
are safe. 

Amy, thanks for shar ing this with the committee and entering i nto the record. 
Cheers, Reba 

To: Chairman Klein and the Senate Industry, Business and Labor Committee 
Senator Veda a 
Senator Burckhard 
Senator Kreun 
Senator Piepkorn 
Senator Roers 

F rom: American Lung Association 
Pat McKone, Reba Mathern-Jacobson 

Re: SB 2137 Do Not Pass Recommendation 

The American Lung Association recommends a Do Not Pass on SB 2137. This bill allows for the indoor smoking of cigars 
and any premium tobacco product under certain conditions. 

• This presents a health r isk to customers i n  the building. 
• This presents a hea l th r isk to employees. 
• N u merous  stud ies have demonstrated that a l l  i ndoor  a i r  is sha red a i r .  Vent i l a t ion system s  do not work.  Th is  

even lead HUD to rule that all public housing be smoke-free a s  of August 2018 .  

• This  wea kens the strong indoor  clean air l aws of N D  that have benefitted us since 2012 .  There is no good cause 
to wea ke n  the l aw with except ions .  

The American Lung Association is the leading organization working to save lives by improving lung health and preventing 
lung disease, through research, education and advocacy. Our  work is focused on four strategic imperat ives :  to defeat 
lung cancer; to imp rove the air we breathe; to reduce the burden of lung d isease on i n d iv id ua l s  and  the i r  fa m i l ies; a n d  to 
eliminate tobacco use and  tobacco-related d iseases .  

Please contact us if you have a ny q uestions . Pat .McKone@Lung.o rg, Reba . M athernJa co bson@Lung.o rg o r  701-354-

9719. 

Please, Do Not Pass SB 2137. 

Reba Mathern-Jacobson,  MSW 
Health Promotion 
American Lung Association i n  ND 
701 -354-97 1 9  
Lung He lpl ine :  1 -800-LUNGUSA 
Lung .erg I Reba . MathernJacobson@Lung.org 
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